
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 11th November, 2021 

 
2.00 pm 

 
Council Chamber – Sessions House 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 





 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
 

Thursday, 11th November, 2021, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Joel Cook 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, 
Maidstone, ME14 1XQ 

Telephone 03000 416892 

   
Membership (11) 
 
Conservative (7): Mr R W Gough (Chair), Mrs C Bell, Mrs S Chandler, 

Mr P J Oakford, Mrs S Prendergast, Mr C Simkins and 
Mr B J Sweetland 
 

Labour (1): Dr L Sullivan 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mrs T Dean, MBE 
 

Green and 
Independent (1): 

Mr S Campkin 
 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 
 

1 Membership  

2 Substitutes  

3 Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

4 Annual Workforce Profile Report Update (Pages 1 - 16) 

5 People Strategy 2017 to 2022 Evaluation (Pages 17 - 50) 

6 Employee Relations Casework Activity (Pages 51 - 54) 

7  Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 



paragraphs 3 and 4 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

 (During these items the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 
 

8 Pay Bargaining (Pages 55 - 56) 

 
 
Benjamin Watts 
General Counsel 
03000 416814 
 
Wednesday, 3 November 2021 
 
 
 



 

 

By:  Bryan Sweetland - Cabinet Member for Communications, Engagement, 
People and Partnerships 

  Amanda Beer – Corporate Director People & Communications 
 

To:  Personnel Committee 
 

Date:  11 November 2021 
 

Subject:  Annual Workforce Profile Report update 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 
 

 
 
Summary: 

 
This report provides an update to the Annual Workforce Profile report presented to 
Personnel Committee in June 2021. It provides information on the changes in staffing 
levels, demographics, and diversity of Kent County Council’s workforce in the six-month 
period ending 30 September 2021. 

 
 
 
 

1.  Changes in staffing levels, demographics and diversity by sector 
 
 

KCC  Non-Schools 

 

1.1 Staffing levels in the non-schools’ workforce have increased slightly since the start of the 
year and the full-time equivalent is now 7,429.7 FTE, 0.8% higher than on 31 March 
2021.  

 

1.2 Turnover increased to September 2021 and now stands at 12.3% compared with 9.8% 
at April 2021. 
 

1.3 The first half of 2021 has shown sickness begin to increase over the period, with the 12-
month rolling average increasing to 6.73 days lost per FTE compared to the beginning of 
the period which stood at 5.98 days lost per FTE. 
 

1.4 During the first half of the year, the proportion of Casual Relief Sessional and Supply 
(CRSS) contracts remained consistent at 11.6% with Fixed Term contracts rising from 
3.3% to 4.1%. As of 30 September 2021, there were 60 employees accessing the 
apprenticeship training within the KCC non-schools’ sector and 2 in LATCos. 
 

1.5 KCC continues to attract people from across the protected characteristics; however, the 
proportion of people applying does not always correspond to the proportion of those 
appointed.  For example,  26.9% of applicants were male, but 20.8% of those appointed 
were male, whereas 73.1% of those that applied were female compared to 79.2% 
appointed being female.  
 

1.6 September 2021 analysis of the non-school’s workforce by diversity showed an increase 
in percentages of staff in BAME, LGB and Considered Disabled categories from the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

 

March 2021 figures. Within the Leadership group the proportion of female staff has 
shown a reduction, moving from 60.3% to 59.8% The average age remained at 45 
years and the age indicators show a small increase in the percentage of staff aged 25 
and under from the initial March 2021 figures from 6.3% to 6.6%. 
 

1.7 September 2021 figures show 435 agency staff employed in the non-schools’ sector.   
 

1.8 Appendix 8 provides an illustration of the reasons for leaving in the first 6 months of the 
year. This indicates that the vast majority left by way of Resignation at 69.7% followed 
by Retirement at 15.3% and there have been reductions in the number of dismissals 
compared to last year.   

 
2.  Directorates 

 
2.1  The percentage of permanent contracts varies considerably by Directorate, from 77.8% in 

Growth, Environment and Transport (GT) to 90.9% in Strategic & Corporate Services (ST). 
ST has the highest proportion of Fixed Term contracts at 7.4%, an increase from 4.2% in 
March 2021. 

 
2.2 Children, Young People and Education (CY) and GT have the highest proportion of CRSS 

contracts, which account for 15.8% (GT) and 14.5% (CY) of their workforce. GT has 
reduced slightly during the first 6 months of the year whereas CY shows an increase. 

 
2.3 Year to date figures for the Directorates show that sickness levels were highest in Adult 

Social Care and Health (AH) at 5.44 days lost per FTE in the first half year and lowest in 
ST at 1.57 days lost per FTE. 

 
2.4 Distribution across the salary bands varies significantly, with the proportion on KR6 & 

below ranging from 15.9% in ST to 51.5% in GT. ST has the highest proportion of staff on 
the higher grades (KR14 & above), 7.0% 

 
2.5 The twelve-month rolling turnover figure to the 30 September 2021 varied between the 

Directorates, 9.4% in ST to 12.6% in CY and AH (exc. CRSS). 
 
2.6 Analysis of the workforce by diversity strand shows quite wide variation by Directorate. As 

an example, female staff account for 63.0% of the CY leadership group but 38.0% of GT’s. 
Analysis of the age profile in Directorates shows CY to have the highest 
proportion of younger staff at 7.5% and GT to have a higher proportion of older staff at 
8.1%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

 
3.  Further information 

 

Further information on the areas covered in this report is available in the attached 
appendices: 
  Appendix 1 Staffing levels and Contract details 

  Appendix 2 Agency staff 

  Appendix 3 Salaries 

  Appendix 4 Turnover 

  Appendix 5 Sickness 

  Appendix 6 Equalities 

  Appendix 7 Equality in recruitment 

 Appendix 8 Leavers by Leave reason 

 Appendix 9 Schools Information 

 
 

 
 

4.  Recommendation  
 

Members are asked to note the content of this report. 
 

 

 
Paul Royel 
Head of HR & OD 
Ext 416631 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Background documents –  
Annual workforce profile report to Personnel Committee June 2021

Page 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

Page 4



Appendix 1 – Staffing and Contract Details 
 

Non-Schools Workforce: Staffing Levels 

 

  Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 
Change Mar-

Sept 21 
% Mar-
Sept 21 

Contract count 9,841 9,865 9,879 38 0.4% 

Headcount (inc. 
CRSS*) 

9,298 9,317 9,328 30 0.3% 

Headcount (exc. 
CRSS*) 

8,579 8,622 8,623 44 0.5% 

FTE 7,373.5 7,409.9 7,429.7 56 0.8% 

 

 

Staffing Levels: Directorates 

 

Directorate  
Contract 

Count 
Mar-21 

Contract 
Count 
Sep-21 

Headcount 
(Inc CRSS) 

Mar-21 

Headcount 
(Inc CRSS) 

Sep-21 

Headcount 
(exc CRSS) 

Mar-21 

Headcount 
(exc CRSS) 

Sep-21 

FTE 
Mar-21 

FTE 
Sep-21 

CY 3,702 3,903 3,534 3,717 3,146 3,294 2,827.6 2,954.2 

GT 2,200 2,226 2,036 2,058 1,798 1,835 1,368.6 1,383.4 

AH 3,044 2,790 2,865 2,627 2,750 2,544 2,350.8 2,203.4 

ST 895 960 891 957 889 953 826.5 888.7 

 

Non-schools workforce:  Staff by contract type (grouped)   

 

  
Mar-21 Mar-21 % Sep-21 Sep-21 % 

Permanent 8,265 84.0% 8,231 83.3% 

Temporary 103 1.0% 96 1.0% 

Fixed term 328 3.3% 402 4.1% 

CRSS* 1,145 11.6% 1,150 11.6% 

  9,841 100% 9,879 100% 

 

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21

Non-schools staffing levels 

Contract count

Headcount
(inc. CRSS*)

Headcount
(exc. CRSS*)

FTE

0 

83.3% 

1.0% 

4.1% 

11.6% 

Non-Schools Staff Sep-21 

Permanent Temporary Fixed term CRSS*

Page 5



 

Directorates Workforce: Staff by contract type (grouped)   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Permanent 
Mar-21 

Permanent 
Sep-21 

Temporary 
Mar-21 

Temporary 
Sept-21 

Fixed-
term 
Mar-21 

Fixed-
term 
Sept-21 

CRSS 
Mar-21 

CRSS 
Sept-21 

CY 81.8% 80.6% 1.1% 0.9% 3.4% 4.0% 13.7% 14.5% 

GT 77.2% 77.8% 0.9% 1.0% 5.4% 5.4% 16.6% 15.8% 

AH 88.4% 89.0% 1.3% 1.0% 1.5% 1.9% 8.8% 8.1% 

ST 94.7% 90.9% 0.6% 1.0% 4.2% 7.4% 0.4% 0.6% 

Page 6



Appendix 2 – Agency Staff 

 

 

Year 
Agency 

Staff 

Sep-15 798 

Mar-16 671 

Sep-16 613 

Mar-17 481 

Sep-17 572 

Mar-18 428 

Sep-18 390 

Mar-19 335 

Sep-19 363 

Mar-20 365 

Sep-20 380 

Sep-21 435 

 

 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16 Mar-17 Sep-17 Mar-18 Sep-18 Mar-19 Sep-19 Mar-20 Sep-20 Sep-21

Agency Staff 

Page 7



 

Appendix 3 – Salaries 

Staff by Salary Band: Non-schools Workforce  

 

Staffing Levels: Directorates Workforce: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37% 

38% 

23% 

2% 0% Non-Schools Workforce 
Sep-21 

KR6 & Below

KR7 - 9

KR10 - 13

KR14-15

KR16 & Above

  
Mar-
21 

Mar-
21 % 

Sep-
21 

Sep-
21% 

KR6 & Below 3,207 37.4% 3,150 36.7% 

KR7 - 9 3,231 37.7% 3,263 38.0% 

KR10 - 13 1,963 22.9% 1,998 23.3% 

KR14-15 138 1.6% 143 1.7% 

KR16 & Above 37 0.4% 30 0.3% 

  CY Mar-21 CY Sep-21 GT Mar-21 GT Sep-21 AH Mar-21 AH Sep-21 ST Mar-21 ST Sep-21 

KR6 & 
Below 27.8% 26.8% 50.5% 51.5% 46.5% 46.2% 16.0% 15.9% 

KR7 - 9 44.3% 45.8% 31.3% 30.3% 36.8% 36.2% 30.2% 31.4% 

KR10 - 13 25.5% 25.1% 17.2% 17.1% 16.2% 17.1% 46.2% 45.7% 

KR14-15 2.2% 2.1% 0.7% 0.8% 0.4% 0.4% 5.3% 5.1% 

KR16 & 
Above 0.2% 0.2% 0.3% 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 2.4% 1.9% 

Page 8



Appendix 4 – Turnover 

Turnover: Non Schools Workforce 

*Actual leaving reasons excluded = Compulsory Redundancy, Employee Transfer 

and TUPE transfer 

 

Turnover: Directorates (Incl CRSS*) 

 

 

Turnover: Directorates (exc. CRSS*) 

  Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 

Children, Young People and Education (Formerly 
Education and Young People Services) 

9.8% 10.3% 10.6% 11.1% 11.9% 12.6% 

Growth, Environment and Transport 7.3% 7.8% 8.0% 8.4% 9.0% 9.6% 

Adult Social Care and Health (Formerly Social 
Care, Health and Wellbeing) 10.5% 10.8% 11.4% 11.5% 12.4% 12.6% 

Strategic and Corporate Services 6.4% 7.1% 7.3% 8.1% 8.9% 9.4% 

 

 

 

 

  Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 

NS Turnover (inc. CRSS) 9.8% 10.4% 10.7% 11.1% 11.8% 12.3% 

NS Turnover (exc. CRSS) 9.1% 9.6% 10.0% 10.4% 11.1% 11.6% 

NS Turnover (excluding CRSS) and excluding 
Compulsory Redundancies/Transfers/School 
closing* 8.9% 9.4% 9.7% 10.1% 10.8% 11.4% 

  
Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 

Children, Young People and Education (Formerly 
Education and Young People Services) 10.5% 11.0% 11.3% 11.7% 12.4% 12.9% 

Growth, Environment and Transport 7.8% 8.7% 9.0% 9.4% 10.1% 11.0% 

Adult Social Care and Health (Formerly Social 
Care, Health and Wellbeing) 11.5% 11.8% 12.3% 12.4% 13.1% 13.3% 

Strategic and Corporate Services 6.4% 7.0% 7.3% 8.1% 8.9% 9.4% 

Page 9



 

Appendix 5 – Sickness 

Month 

Days 
lost per 
FTE in 
month 

12 
month 
rolling 

average  

Oct-20 0.54 6.90 

Nov-20 0.56 6.70 

Dec-20 0.63 6.59 

Jan-21 0.64 6.40 

Feb-21 0.48 6.19 

Mar-21 0.51 5.99 

Apr-21 0.48 5.98 

May-21 0.49 6.08 

Jun-21 0.54 6.23 

Jul-21 0.59 6.37 

Aug-21 0.63 6.60 

Sep-21 0.62 6.73 

 

Directorates: Days lost per FTE 

  Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 TOTAL 

CY 0.31 0.32 0.35 0.49 0.47 0.58 2.52 

GT 0.35 0.42 0.50 0.50 0.44 0.48 2.69 

AH 0.86 0.85 0.90 0.92 1.03 0.89 5.44 

ST 0.20 0.21 0.23 0.24 0.35 0.34 1.57 

 

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

Days lost Per FTE

Directorates: Sickness Days Lost per FTE 

CY GT AH ST

5.0

5.4

5.8

6.2

6.6

7.0

7.4

7.8

8.2

8.6

9.0

Non-schools workforce:  
Sickness levels (12 month rolling average)  

Page 10



Appendix 6 – Equalities 

Non-schools Workforce: 

  All Staff Mar-21 All Staff Sep-21 Leadership Group Mar-21 Leadership Group Sep-21 

Female 79.6% 79.6% 60.3% 59.8% 

BAME 7.8% 8.1% 5.7% 6.2% 

Considered Disabled  3.0% 4.3% 4.1% 4.4% 

Faith 46.3% 46.2% 47.6% 45.5% 

LGB 2.4% 2.7% 1.9% 1.8% 

Gender Reassignment 0.5% 0.5% 0.3% 0.6% 

 

Directorates: All Staff (Excl. CRSS) 

  
Female 
Mar-21 

Female 
Sep 21 

BAME 
Mar-21 

BAME 
Sep-21 

Considered 
Disabled 
Mar-21  

Considered 
Disabled 
Sep-21 

LGB 
Mar-21 

LGB 
Sep-21  

Faith 
Mar-21 

Faith 
Sep-21 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Mar-21 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Sep-21 

CY 86.1% 86.0% 8.3% 8.8% 3.7% 3.8% 2.3% 2.9% 45.9% 46.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

GT 63.3% 63.8% 3.6% 4.1% 4.0% 4.3% 1.8% 2.1% 45.7% 45.7% 0.6% 0.6% 

AH 85.9% 85.5% 10.3% 10.5% 4.6% 5.0% 3.0% 3.1% 49.2% 48.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

ST 70.2% 72.0% 6.4% 7.1% 4.4% 4.7% 2.5% 2.6% 40.2% 39.5% 0.2% 0.2% 

 

Directorates: Leadership Group (Excl. CRSS) 

  
Female 
Mar-21 

Female 
Sep- 21 

BME 
Mar-21 

BME 
Sep-21 

Considered 
Disabled 
Mar-21  

Considered 
Disabled 
Sep-21 

LGB 
Mar-21 

LGB 
Sep-21  

Faith 
Mar-21 

Faith 
Sep-21 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Mar-21 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Sep-21 

CY 63.2% 63.0% 6.6% 6.5% 4.7% 4.6% 1.9% 1.9% 42.5% 40.7% 0.0% 0.0% 

GT 36.7% 38.0% 6.1% 6.0% 4.1% 4.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.9% 46.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

AH 72.2% 75.0% 3.7% 3.8% 5.6% 5.8% 3.7% 5.8% 50.0% 48.1% 0.0% 1.9% 

ST 55.9% 59.5% 6.3% 6.9% 2.4% 3.8% 1.6% 0.8% 46.5% 48.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

 

P
age 11



 

Age Performance Indicators: Non-schools 

 

Age Performance Indicators: Directorates 

 

Notes: Leadership Group = Staff on KR13 or above and £53,662 minimum salary 

Figures exclude schools and casual relief, sessional and supply staff. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  Non-School based staff  Leadership Group 

  Non-schools Mar-21 
Non-

schools 
Sep-21 

Leadership Group 
Mar-21 

Leadership Group 
Sep-21 

% aged 25 and 
under 6.3% 6.6% 0.0% 0.0% 

% aged 30 and 
under 15.4% 15.9% 0.6% 0.9% 

% aged 31 - 49 43.0% 43.2% 45.7% 44.9% 

% aged 50 and 
over  41.6% 40.9% 53.7% 54.3% 

% aged 65 and 
over 4.4% 4.4% 2.1% 2.6% 

  
Children, Young 

People and 
Education  

Growth, 
Environment and 

Transport 

Adult Social Care 
and Health  

Strategic and 
Corporate Services 

  
CY 

Mar-21  
CY 

Sep-21 
GT Mar-

21 
GT Sep-

21 
AH Mar-

21 
AH Sep-

21 
ST Mar-

21 
ST Sep-21 

% aged 25 
and under 7.2% 7.5% 6.7% 6.9% 4.9% 5.1% 6.3% 7.0% 

% aged 30 
and under 17.5% 17.9% 13.8% 14.1% 13.7% 13.8% 16.5% 18.3% 

% aged 31 - 
49 46.2% 45.9% 36.8% 36.8% 40.8% 41.6% 51.5% 50.3% 

% aged 50 
and over  36.3% 36.2% 49.4% 49.2% 45.5% 44.7% 31.9% 31.5% 

% aged 65 
and over 3.0% 2.9% 7.6% 8.1% 4.7% 4.4% 1.8% 2.1% 

Page 12



Appendix 7 - Equality in Recruitment 
 
 

Equality in Recruitment (April to September 2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Figures are for non-schools’ recruitment  

  
Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

Hired % 

BAME 3,327 20.1% 141 15.4% 

White 12,940 78.0% 767 83.6% 

Chose 
not to 
declare 

316 1.91% 9 0.98% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  
Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

% of 
Hired 

Considered 
Disabled 

1,114 6.7% 64 7.0% 

Not Considered 
Disabled 

15,465 93.3% 851 92.8% 

Chose not to 
declare 

4 0.02% 2 0.22% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  
Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

Hired % 

Heterosexual 14,564 87.8% 796 86.8% 

LGB 988 6.0% 64 7.0% 

Chose not to 
declare 

1,031 6.22% 57 6.22% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  
Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

% of 
Hired 

Female 12,114 73.1% 726 79.2% 

Male 4,469 26.9% 191 20.8% 

Chose 
not to 
declare 

0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

% of 
Hired 

Transgender 77 0.5% 2 0.2% 

Non TG 16,295 98.3% 905 98.7% 

Chose not to 
declare 

211 1.27% 10 1.09% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  Applied 
Count 

Applied 
% 

Hired 
Count 

Hired % 

Faith 7,944 47.9% 423 46.1% 

No Faith 7,809 47.1% 454 49.5% 

Chose not to 
declare 

830 5.01% 40 4.36% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

  Applied 
Count 

Applied % 
Hired 
Count 

Hired % 

Up to 19 523 3.2% 25 2.7% 

20 - 25 3,803 22.9% 164 17.9% 

26 - 35 4,471 27.0% 205 22.4% 

36 - 45 3,502 21.1% 233 25.4% 

46 - 55 2,741 16.5% 190 20.7% 

56 - 65 1,184 7.1% 77 8.4% 

Over 65 39 0.2% 5 0.5% 

Chose not to declare 320 1.93% 18 1.96% 

Total 16,583 100.00% 917 100.00% 

Page 13



 

Appendix 8 – Leavers by Leaving Reason 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Analysis by leaving reason relates only to staff that have left the Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leaving Reason 
April - 
Sept 21 

Resignation - New Employment 216 

Resignation - Other 142 

Retirement - Normal 91 

Resignation - Personal /Domestic 
Reasons 71 

Mutual Termination 27 

Resignation - Career Development 24 

End of Fixed Term Contract 20 

PR/Casual - Not Claimed in the last 12 
months 10 

Deceased 7 

Resignation - Nature of Work 7 

Unknown 7 

Voluntary Redundancy 6 

Compulsory Redundancy 5 

End of Temporary Contract 5 

Voluntary Early Retirement 5 

Contract Terminated within Probation 4 

Early Retirement - Ill Health (Tier 1) 4 

Dismissal - Capability - Performance 2 

Dismissal - Conduct 2 

Resignation - Competition from other 
employers 2 

Resignation - Conditions of employment 2 

Termination of Supply/Sessional Staff 2 

Blank 1 

Early Retirement - Ill Health (Tier 2) 1 

Early Retirement - Ill Health (Tier 3) 1 

TUPE Transfer 1 

Total number of leavers 665 

Grouping Count Proportion 

Dismissal 10 1.50% 

Redundancy 11 1.65% 

Resignation 464 69.77% 

Retirement 102 15.34% 

Transfer 1 0.15% 

Other 77 11.58% 

Total 665 
 

Page 14



 

Appendix 9 – Schools Information 
 

Schools workforce: Staffing levels 
 

A total of 5 schools changed to academy status as at 1st September all of which 
were primary schools.  

 
As of September 2021, this year there were 591 schools of which 459 are Primary, 
101 are Secondary (including the 6 Pupil Referral Units) and 24 Special schools 
 
 
At September 2021 there were 10,430.1 FTE school based staff.* 
*figure based on schools buying HR services from Cantium Business Solutions.  
 

 

  Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 
Change 

Mar-Sep 21 
% Mar-
Sep 21 

Contract count 19,104 18,936 19,096 -8 0% 

Headcount (inc. 
CRSS*) 

15,729 15,599 15,716 -13 0% 

Headcount (exc. 
CRSS*) 

14,575 14,456 14,567 -8 0% 

FTE 10,322.1 10,220.3 10,430.1 108 1% 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

Page 16



 

 

By: Bryan Sweetland – Cabinet Member for Communications, 
Engagement, People and Partnerships  
Amanda Beer – Corporate Director People & Communications 
  

To:   Personnel Committee 
 
Date:   11 November 2021 
 
Subject:  People Strategy 2017-22 Evaluation 
 
Classification:  Unrestricted 
 

 
Summary: This paper provides Personnel Committee with an evaluation of the 

current People Strategy and areas that have been accelerated in 
response to the pandemic, the results of which will form the foundation 
of the next 5-year strategy. 

 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. The current People Strategy 2017-2022 was the first overarching employment 

strategy expressed in a single document in KCC and sought to set out the 
organisation’s expectations for its workforce. It presented how we aimed to 
position ourselves as an employer; a 5-year plan for how we intended to 
recruit, retain, develop, and manage people performance and what 
improvements we would expect to see. Personnel Committee originally agreed 
the Strategy in July 2017 and has received annual updates on progress in 
subsequent years. This report will provide the final and aggregate evaluation 
of this Strategy. 
 

1.2. The Strategy sets out a vision: “to make the most of our staff and their talents. 
We need to ensure that we have a skilled and motivated workforce which is 
flexible and innovative and works with our communities and partners to deliver 
services and find solutions where necessary.” 
 
Alongside some guiding principles: 
 
Business & Outcome Focussed 
Flexible 
Build our Capacity 
Leadership  
Innovation 
Collaboration, 
 
its collective aim is to maximise the capability and contribution of all staff. 

 
1.3 Attached in Appendix 1 is the detailed analysis of each of the 8 specific 

outcomes in the People Strategy.  
 
2. Context 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

 

2.1  Whilst the Strategy provides a clear focus for the HR & OD function, there are 
critical roles for all in the organisation. Managers have a fundamental role to 
play in the employer/employee relationship and crucially in delivering the 
ambitions contained in the People Strategy. 

 
2.2 Our senior Leadership are expected to understand and commit to the 

importance of the Strategy, its component elements and the investment being 
made in our workforce. However good the Leadership and Management, 
though, delivery of services are made through staff and therefore their 
engagement in the strategy is essential. Their experiences with us, as their 
employer, should be positive and they continue to be the biggest single source 
of employer advocacy. Our Trades Unions have a significant voice and role to 
play in support of the strategy and its implementation for staff. This has been a 
positive relationship on this issue throughout the past 4 years. 

 
2.3  Finally, there is the role of the HR & OD function to ensure there are 

supporting frameworks, standards, development and provision of advice and 
guidance. The Strategy has helpfully framed the offer the function has made, 
set priority activities, and created a single narrative for employment in KCC. 

 
2.4 The Strategy was intended to run the full 5-year period but the response to the 

pandemic provided an opportunity for the organisation to ‘re-set’ itself as an 
employer. To achieve this, it was agreed that elements within the strategy 
would be accelerated, and lessons learned from the response and recovery 
used to enable a new vision to be launched in 2022.  

 
3. Underpinning Strategies 
 
3.1 There are 3 core strategies that provide a framework for delivery.. 
 
3.2  Organisational Development - the creation and delivery of a suitable 

development plan for the workforce. Tailored programmes such as Leadership 
& Management and Commissioning, as well as embedding our culture and 
values are key strands of this work, ultimately ensuring that we have 
sustainable growth in the capability of our staff. 

 
3.3 Resourcing - ensuring we have the right people in the right place at the right 

time; developing the necessary flexibility to respond to business need; 
maximizing the investment in recruitment as well as utilizing our organisation 
design principles to help build inherent strength and flexibility to our structures.  

 
3.4 Health & Wellbeing - is an area that has seen considerable investment of 

effort and has altered during the past 4 years. It intends to enhance the 
physical and metal wellbeing of all staff, ideally providing proactive 
interventions but also managing the consequences of staff’s experiences and 
circumstances.  

 
4. Outcomes 
 
4.1  There were 8 specific outcomes that the People Strategy intended to realise 

and demonstrate achievement. They are. 
 

 Staff Development – to meet predicted future requirements 

Page 18



 

 

 Pragmatism – in our approach to risk in people management (reduce process, 
empower managers, and support quicker decision making) 

 Manager Conversations – with staff take place with a focus on outcomes 

 Good People Management – managers appreciate and undertake their full 
people management responsibilities 

 Improved Engagement – through capitalising on employee’s specific skills and 
capabilities 

 Awareness of the Employment Offer – so employees engage with it in a way 
that works best for them and the Authority 

 Resource Management – respond to resourcing issues quickly and effectively 

 Better Recognition – employees are rewarded and recognised in a way the 
increased engagement and performance 

 
5. Progress and achievements 
  
5.1  The move the organisation has made in the four years from 2017 has been 

significant in terms of its culture, its approach to people management, the 
development of skills alongside adaptability. When the pandemic broke all of 
these were demonstrated as the People Strategy with its drive towards the key 
outcomes above demonstrated how strong a position the organisation was in, 
not only to deliver services to the residents of Kent, but also to adapt in the 
face of the most significant challenge to the organisation’s business continuity 
that it has faced for many years. 

 
5.2 Some of the key elements activities that got us to that position can be seen in: 
 

a) Good Conversations: staff survey results, and other indicators, have shown 
the activity to move towards more trusted conversations in the organisation 
has had a significant impact on employee engagement and performance 
 

b) Workforce Planning: the development of our learning and training offer, 
including the implementation of the Social Work Academy and the 
development of our apprenticeship offer, has seen significant focus and 
uptake in the upskilling of our workforce. Alongside this we have been 
adaptive in our approach to recruiting and retaining key staff 

c) Development of e-learning: has supported our workforce planning with 
significant levels of engagement from employees 

 
d) Organisation Design Principles – developed to reflect our learning from the 

current strategy but will go forward to underpin the new one 
 

e) Inclusion – we have seen significant movement in the profile of inclusion 
and diversity in the organisation and well as fundamental progress to 
becoming an inclusive employer – which has had a positive affect on 
engagement and performance 

 
f) good employee relations management – through many of the elements 

above managers have better engaged with their staff to ensure that 
employee relations are effective and conducive which helps in staff working 
with and for their managers 
 

Page 19



 

 

g) Health and Wellbeing: the support provided in the organisation has 
developed significantly over the lifetime of the strategy, particularly in terms 
of supporting mental health at work. This culminated in the Council recently 
receiving a Kent and Medway Healthy Workplaces Gold Award – with 
special mention of our mental health support 

 
h) flexible working – the organisation had started to gradually move towards 

people working in a more flexible way, in terms of how, where and when 
they work, and this provided an effective basis for the Authority to shift 
more fundamentally over the last year and a half to embrace this style of 
working  

 
6. Evaluation and assessment 
 
6.1 The detailed assessment of the entire Strategy is contained in Appendix 1. The 

sources of data have included staff surveys, individual feedback, engagement 
levels – particularly in Learning & Development. 

 
6.2 The ultimate test and assessment of our achievements has come in our 

response to the pandemic. Our resilience, flexibility, engagement levels, 
capability and collaboration has been impressive and undoubtedly a result of so 
many of the elements of the Strategy.  

 
7. Future scope 
 
7.1  There is more work to do on several issues. By its strategic nature there is an 

inevitable evolution from the existing People Strategy to the next edition. We 
have started to see a difference in our ambition to be an inclusive employer. 
More is required on ensuring our culture and values are recognised and 
included in developing the underpinning policy and practice. This will include 
making accountability even more prominent and a reality. 

 
7.2  We have made a significant investment in our management development 

which will need to be maintained for our existing and new managers over the 
coming years. We will need to continue to enhance managerial confidence as 
much as competence.  

 
7.3 Other areas to continue will include workforce planning, maximising the pay 

and recognition tools we have available to achieve our ambition of being an 
employer that people want to join, stay, and make a difference in and to.     

 
8. Conclusion 

 
8.1  The progress the Council has made as an employer through the lifetime of the 

People Strategy has been significant. It has been very helpful to have had 
such a collective narrative and coordination of such activity. It has provided the 
organisation with a significant platform to ensure that our employees deliver 
the best possible services to the people of Kent. It has also provided a firm 
foundation for the continued development of a progressive and adaptable 
strategy that will help the Council meet future challenges through its 
workforce. 

 
 

Page 20



 

 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1  Personnel Committee are invited to note the achievements of the People 

Strategy and its overall evaluation. 
 

 
Report Author:  Paul Royel  
Name, job title:   Head of HR & OD 
Telephone number:  03000 416631 
Email address:  paul.royel@kent.gov.uk 

Relevant Director:  Amanda Beer 
Name, job title: Corporate Director People & Communications  
Telephone number:  03000 415835 
Email address:  amanda.beer@kent.gov.uk 

  
Background Documents:  The People Strategy  
https://kentcountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/KNet/kentdocuments/People%20Strat
egy%202017-2022.pdf#search=People%20Strategy  

Page 21

https://kentcountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/KNet/kentdocuments/People%20Strategy%202017-2022.pdf#search=People%20Strategy
https://kentcountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/KNet/kentdocuments/People%20Strategy%202017-2022.pdf#search=People%20Strategy


This page is intentionally left blank



People Strategy 2017-2022 Evaluation 

Outcome 1: People understand and use all of the aspects within the 

employment offer in a way which works best for them and the organisation. 

Delivering increased engagement and improved performance through TCP 

assessments 

Progress:   

The employment offer helps KCC to distinguish itself in the employment market 

and ensures that employee’s engagement with the business is maximised, with the 

intention that service delivery is enhanced. A work environment that is attractive to 

both current and potential employees is an important part of the employment offer. 

The offer is vast and varied and includes but is not limited to; flexible benefits, an 

extensive learning and development offer, fair and equitable employment practices 

and health and wellbeing support.  

KCC’s leadership traits, cultural attributes, and values and behaviours that 

underpin ways of working have evolved over the period of the strategy and have 

recently been refreshed to reflect the lived experience of employees and the kind of 

employer we want to be, as outlined in outcome 6. These new values can be clearly 

seen in the organisation’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic in the new 

organisation design principles following the strategic reset. 

An attractive range of flexible benefits that meets individual needs of staff has been 

an important part of the offer: 

 Kent Rewards: benefits available on the Kent Rewards portal have been 

promoted in a themed way, e.g. Health & Wellbeing and Financial Wellbeing. 

The number of registered users, which includes schools, has increased by 

26% over the 4-year period of the strategy (19,330 to 24,409). Since the start 

of the current contract in 2015, £45.3m has been spent through national 

providers to date.   

 AVC’s: introduction of salary sacrifice AVC’s has provided enhanced flexibility 

for financial planning. 

An employment proposition that promotes diversity and inclusion supports the 

achievement of our workforce equality objectives. This has included:  

 An inclusive policy framework, which has recently been reviewed in light of 

Covid-19 to ensure policies and terms and conditions are fit for purpose 

 Ensuring fair and equitable employment practices through reviews such as 

the provisions for staff on Term Time Only and Zero Hours contracts, and 

arrangements for holiday pay and sleep ins 

 The Demographic Risk Assessment to encourage conversations with staff 

around risk factors and what mitigation/support is needed 

 Staff communications and engagement focused on raising awareness 

through celebration days, staff group activities and sharing lived experiences 

to enhance employee engagement  

Page 23



 Building accessibility audits and digital accessibility, including the provision 

of BSL signers at live organisation events for the first time, improving the accessibility 

of these sessions 

 The annual collation of workplace adjustments has been a positive way to 

understand what support has been provided for staff as a result of effective 

line management conversations  

 The ongoing monitoring of equalities data to identify new initiatives and 

opportunities for improvement 

Specific strategies have been designed to provide holistic health and wellbeing 

support to employees to ensure their physical, mental, social and financial wellbeing 

and this is promoted as part of the offer to current staff through integrated 

engagement plans. This has included: 

 Delivery of the Time to Change plan with the formation of the Mental Health 

Support Network, and more recently the transition to the Mental Health at 

Work Commitment.  

 An enhanced wellbeing offer in response to particular health trends 

exacerbated by Covid-19 such as MSK guidance for managers, refreshed 

stress management policy, H&S, wellness action plans and wellbeing 

webinars focused on mental wellbeing and resilience. Engagement with these 

offers has been high with almost 2,000 mindfulness and wellbeing webinar 

attendees in the last financial year alone. Engagement with Support Line has 

continued to increase, however plans to enhance the financial wellbeing offer 

have been delayed.  

  

 KCC has recently achieved the Kent & Medway Healthy Workplaces Award 

in recognition of our approach to workplace wellbeing and will form part of 

how we position ourselves as an employer for both the current and potential 

workforce. 

To establish an authentic KCC ‘brand’ as a way of promoting the Employment Offer, 

staff focus groups took place to understand what it is like to work for the council and 

several themes emerged, one of which was feeling that they can make a difference. 

Page 24



This led to an employer brand based on ‘Moments that matter’, placing their 

experiences at the centre. 

Impact:   

Successive staff surveys show KCC is a more positive place to work where people 

are treated well, they feel valued, respected and recognised for their contribution as 

individuals, and feel listened to and supported by management.  

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

I would recommend KCC as a great place to work 56.4% 61.4% 

I am treated with respect by the people that I work with 83.2% 86.5% 

 

However, the experience of those with a protected characteristic has not been as 

positive, particularly those staff with a disability. In the last year, we have also had 

anecdotal feedback from BAME staff that there experience of the workplace in 

response to ‘Black Lives Matter’ and Covid-19 has been less than positive.  

Staff Survey 2019 Disabled Non-Disabled 

Overall: Inclusion 77% 85% 

Overall: Engagement 59% 67% 

 

Staff survey data indicates the financial reward and support available is having an 

impact on levels of engagement, which correlates with higher TCP ratings, see 

outcome 2 and staff survey responses.  

Levels of engagement with the wellbeing offer, initiatives and support available has 

been positively received, with employees feeling that KCC cares about the wellbeing 

of its staff, seeing a rise of positive responses by 8.9% (59.6% in 2018 to 65.1% in 

2019). However, there has not been a reduction in overall levels of sickness absence 

over the period of the People Strategy.  

 

Page 25



 

Time to Change has helped to support the increase in employee engagement with 

the wellbeing offer. The number of workplace adjustments to support mental 

health, number of referrals to Staff Care Services and to Support Line counselling 

have all increased, which suggests managers are supporting mental health at a local 

level. Although this is with a backdrop of an increase in days lost due to mental 

health, it appears to be consistent with the national picture. When comparing KCC’s 

top three sickness reasons to other local authorities they appear to be similar, with 

the majority having a form of Mental Health or Stress related illness as their top 

sickness reason.    

It is too soon to understand the impact of the employer positioning work on meeting 

the intended outcomes. The New Joiners Survey is being resurrected to provide 

data on whether the adoption of the employer brand guidelines is having an impact 

on expectations of working at KCC matching reality.    

The enhanced employment offer has had a positive impact the achievement of the 

outcomes. Levels of employee engagement amongst the current staff have 

increased by 4.65% (62.3% in 2018 and 65.2% in 2019), and there has been 

improved performance over time, as evidenced by a higher proportion of staff 

achieving higher TCP ratings. However, there was no link to pay during this period 

as a general increase was awarded, as a result of Covid-19. 

Page 26



 

Equalities monitoring data has led to a focus on increasing representation in senior 

leadership roles across KCC, and to improve declaration rates particularly in terms of 

disability although it is too early to understand the impact of this work. 

Next Steps:   

 The approach to performance management will be reviewed during 2022. 

Discussions are already underway with Trade Unions as part of the pay 

bargaining process to look at improvements to TCP/performance.  

 Continue with work to bring values to life within directorates and translating 

the learning from action learning sets into practice to drive the required 

leadership traits, behaviours and culture. This will be reinforced through an 

integrated engagement approach to enable challenging conversations around 

diversity and inclusion, with a focus on race and disability inclusion.   

 Deliver the Race Equality Matters and Disability Inclusion plans to address 

inequity in the workplace, with a focus on gaining traction on the ground with 

managers to improve the experience of minority groups. 

 Enhance wellbeing support through the launch of the financial wellbeing 

support product, and promotion of the broader offer to include AVC’s to drive 

up engagement levels. 

 Ongoing development of sickness data to inform further targeted intervention 

activity with those teams experiencing high absence levels, and evaluation of 

impact. 

 Continue to embed the employer positioning approach for both current and 

potential employees, developing a more informative, dynamic and engaging 

‘front end’ to the organisation and pull this approach through to the current 

workforce too. Promote KCC’s employment offer in a realistic and authentic 

way aims to attract a more diverse workforce, including leadership roles. 

 Continuous improvement of the employment offer to ensure our policies 

and practices remain legally compliant, achieve our workforce objectives, 

align to the strategic direction of the organisation and remain fit for purpose in 

Page 27



the context within which we are operating. Although there are no specific data 

sets which can measure the impact of this activity, it remains valued and 

integral to the People Strategy element of the Strategic Reset programme.  

Page 28



Outcome 2: People are rewarded and recognised for what they do and how 

they do it in a way that is effective for both KCC and staff. Delivering increased 

engagement through appropriate use of recognition tools  

Progress:  

Managing performance and the link to pay is the primary way that an individual’s 

delivery is recognised and rewarded annually. The overall assessment is determined 

by the manager and is based on the cumulative outcome of the conversations which 

have taken place during the year. The approach has also proved to be flexible as 

there was a need to adapt it this year, in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This 

was to mitigate the impact of a different relationship between individuals and their 

manager, whereby a standard award of 2% was given to all. TCP ratings were, 

however, still recorded. Since the introduction of the People Strategy, the TCP rating 

profile has shown a positive trend towards higher performance ratings. 

 

In particular, the outcome of 2020/21 has resulted in joint working to assess the 

efficacy of our approach to pay.  This is broken down into principles of pay scale 

design, impact on recruitment and retention, TCP and the link to pay and pay scales 

and differentiation.  Job evaluation is part of this and the relationship to the 

associated pay and grading structure.  These link to other aspects such as being 

internally fair and externally competitive which in turn link to D&I and engagement. 

KCC has the ability to recognise people’s market value, should the pay scale be 

shown not to do this adequately.  Outside of the market premia for social workers, 

the number of people receiving a payment is a very small proportion of KCC 

employees and the use of this approach is accepted as proportionate and pragmatic 

by Personnel Committee as business cases are required for these payments to be 

made. 

Page 29



The conversational practice tool is regularly promoted with reminders to managers 

about the importance of using this both in terms of performance management and 

also the wider aspects of engaging with direct reports on an individual basis. 

One of the recognition tools available to staff is Because of You, with the criteria 

for awards being linked to our values. There has been a sharp increase in staff 

award nominations over the last year, which may be due to recognising efforts during 

the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

Our approach also means that the TCP outcomes are monitored each year, 

amendments are made to the systems, processes and guidance as part of 

continuous improvement of design and delivery.   

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

I feel appropriately paid for the job that I do 38.7% 41.6% 

I am satisfied with the total employee package 53.9% 53.5% 

My performance is reviewed and rewarded appropriately 
through TCP 

53.3% 52.6% 

 

When asked about package overall staff are broadly satisfied, when ask specifically 

about pay, positive scores dip which indicates it may be an area of lower satisfaction. 

Impact:  

The number of appraisal ratings recorded shows that managers are willing and able 

to assess individuals even during a year of turmoil and when there is no link to pay.  

This implies that the approach to managing performance is integrated into normal 

business activity.  Indeed, the profile of the appraisal rating was similar to that of 

recent previous years which indicates that the results are robust and valid.  Although 

compliance appears to be high there is a ‘heart and mind’ question about underlying 

sentiment.   

The outcome of the annual Local Pay Bargaining process helps identify aspects of 

pay or terms and conditions which can be improved.  This has included: 

Page 30



 Exceeding the Voluntary Living Wage 

 Enhancing and rationalisation of annual leave provision 

The work with the TUs may help probe this further and recommend amendments or 

alternative approaches which can be to put to the organisation for consultation and 

implementation as appropriate. 

One aspect which remains consistently stubborn to improve is the reduced likelihood 

if part-time staff and people on lower grades receiving a higher appraisal rating.  This 

remains the case following this issue being discussed at senior management levels 

across the organisation, updated communications, training and guidance along with 

real time reporting being available as appraisal results are entered. 

The mean Gender Pay Gap figure has increased from 11.1% in 2018 to 12.7% in 

2020. Furthermore, whilst the mean bonus pay gap decreased from 31.7% in 2018 

to 22.2% in 2020 it remains high, with the percentage of males receiving a bonus 

payment (4.4%) continues to be higher than females (2.0%). 

 

Although the number awarded and value increased in 2020-21, as a result of the 

changed approach to the pay award, the use of cash awards is not particularly high 

across the organisation.  In the 4 previous years, there was an average of c.280 

people receiving an award annually equating to around 3% of employees. This 

means that managers are potentially not using all the opportunities available to them 

to recognise individual delivery.  There is also a cultural aspect whereby some parts 

of the organisation may be less well disposed to their use or have less funds 

available to be deployed in this way.  Although there was an increase in the number 

of payments made in 2020-21, this will have been in part to compensate for the 

removal of performance related pay progression. 

Page 31



 

The opportunity to work closely and productively with our recognised TUs offers 

opportunities in other areas such as job evaluation which links to pay, fairness and 

equity. 

The rollout of a flexible approach to working should help people deliver in a way 

which is better balanced for them as well as the organisation.  In turn, this helps 

people to feel that they are trusted and can be rewarded for the outcomes rather 

than output they deliver.  Monitoring this in the context of reward, recognition and 

engagement would therefore be worthwhile.  

Next Steps:  

 Conclude the outcome of the one-off LPB Pay review – devise and put 

proposals to the organisation and deliver agreed changes. This includes 

areas such as managing performance, pay, pay progression, our approach to 

job evaluation and how this links to pay structure and grading. 

 Use this to inform the ongoing annual local pay bargaining process and 

developments. 

 Assess the difficulties in and opportunities for using cash awards 

consistently across the organisation. 

 TCP equality issues to be addressed - part-time and lower graded staff as 

well as other protected characteristics. 

 Devise a more integrated approach for equal pay and gender pay gap 

reporting 

 Consider modification or revision or our approach to performance 

management which capitalises on the gains made and provides a business 

relevant approach for the next 5 years. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



Outcome 3: Resourcing issues are responded to quickly and effectively. 

Reduced recruitment and time taken to recruit   

Progress:  

Significant work has been undertaken to develop a toolkit for recruiting managers 

covering information such as:- 

 Planning recruitment activity 

 Options for the use of Apprenticeships, graduates and Kickstart 

 Advertising and advert writing 

 Media and selection methods  

It provides a ‘one-stop-shop' for understanding the recruitment process, tools and 

options in order to maximise the likelihood of appointing the best candidate.  It 

references other ways to recruit such as apprenticeships and graduates and in turn 

gives managers more options to deliver a successful recruitment campaign outcome. 

We have piloted approaches to better explore the opportunities offered using social 

media and recruitment platforms such as LinkedIn and Indeed.  We want the 

candidate journey to be a positive experience. This can start from the passive 

candidate understanding more about KCC and becoming interested in what we do. A 

joint project with External Communications has given us the opportunity to consider 

how KCC can use social media opportunities better and in a more proactive way. 

Research has been undertaken to inform what we need as an organisation and the 

Employer Positioning work is informing what our new recruitment site will look like. 

This capitalises on the new functionality offered through the TribePad recruitment 

system which is also intended to improve both the candidate and recruiting manager 

experience. 

There is ongoing work to refine the use of metrics as a way of identifying 

improvements in recruitment. This incorporates the aspects of equality, diversity and 

inclusion.  The goal is to agree the key data which needs to be collated, mechanisms 

are in place to achieve this and a robust reporting process is in place in order to 

monitor trends.  The PC Business Performance Team are waiting to gain access to 

the TribePad recruitment system which will allow for a more holistic approach to 

viewing overall progress and delivery. 

Procurement have been approached both to extend the TMP contract and to put in 

place a new contract when the current arrangement ends. They are aware that in the 

longer term, we would ideally have more flexibility around accessing recruitment 

agency providers and need to balance this with the relatively small spend.  The 

invite to tender has resulted in a new provider being appointed as Penna will be 

taking over from TMP.  

There is now planned activity for recruitment communications which includes story 

telling through shared experiences, values collateral, reframing manager 

communications to support better recruitment campaign outcomes.  

Page 33



To support flexibility in resourcing, our approach to agile deployment is being 

developed. This has included mapping hard to recruit roles across the organisation 

and learning from the crisis response to Covid-19. There has been ongoing 

engagement with staff in grades KR3-8 about future skills required and follow up 

feedback sessions with CMT are planned on key themes and values. This is being 

supported with communications around flexible working, and development of new 

collateral and supporting information to support the way we work.  

Agency staff numbers and in-year spend show a downward trend over the first four 

years, however the numbers increased sharply in 2020-21. 

 

This is because the figures include 800 people contracted through C2K to staff the 

Covid19 testing centres. There is no concomitant rise in expenditure as separate 

funding arrangements were made for this. 

Additional interventions include the new graduate scheme, apprenticeship 

programmes as well as the Kickstart programme which as well as enable KCC to 

address resourcing needs, build capability and capacity within the workforce as 

outlined in Outcome 4.    

Impact:  

Average time to hire has fallen from 65 days in 2019/20 to 40 days in 2020/21. 

This may be due to a variety of reasons, including the introduction of the new 

TribePad recruitment system, resulting in more streamlined processes and better 

guidance for managers. Staff turnover has also been lower due to Covid-19. 

As well as the toolkit for recruiting managers, progress has been made to update the 

values based interviewing guidance and the management capabilities and 

Leadership traits which assists with selecting the right people, not just based on 

skills or education. Managers are helped to consider other recruitment options such 

as the use of Apprenticeships and graduates. Guidance has been modified to allow 

managers to interview once a suitable number of quality candidates have applied 

rather than having to wait for a particular date therefore speeding up the 

appointment process. 

Page 34



The New Joiners Survey has been amended to take into account the current 

requirements as well as have enhanced Diversity and Inclusion reporting included. 

The change in recruitment agency provider is intended to bring greater creativity 

and innovation to the recruitment outcome as well as cost reduction.  

Our workforce profile indicates we are under-represented at a senior leadership 

level in terms of ethnicity (6% BAME compared to 7.8% in KCC overall), and the 

percentage of disabled staff across KCC is significantly lower than the community we 

serve (3.95%) compared to the Kent population according to the Census 2011 

(17.6%). An analysis of our recruitment data for minority groups also suggests there 

could be an issue with candidates either finding KCC an attractive place to work or 

being successful at interview. Highlights from the recruitment data include: 

 The number of disabled candidates applying for roles in KCC has increased 

by 26% since falling in 2018/19, However the number of disabled candidates 

being hired during the same period has fallen by 12.5%. 

 The number of BAME candidates applying for roles in KCC has decreased 

by 26% since its highest point in 2016/17. The number of BAME candidates 

being hired has also fallen by 54%. 

There is therefore a need to continue to improve the metrics to better understand the 

impact of recruitment practices on minority groups and adjust our approach 

accordingly. 

Next Steps:  

 Use the principles of continuous improvement to update the recruiting 

manager toolkit.  

 Consider options to develop and then agree a strategic direction for the use 

of social media  

 Rollout the new recruitment website integrating employer positioning, Tribe 

Pad and candidate experience informed by New Joiner Survey results 

 Work in conjunction with Procurement to implement the new recruitment 

agency contract arrangement as we transition from TMP to Penna provided 

services. 

 Deliver internal and external recruitment communications  

 Assess and act on the information returned through the New Joiners Survey. 

 Review the recruitment data available within TribePad when access 

becomes available and plan how we can use it to best effect. 

 Explore positive action in recruitment to drive up representation rates of 

minority groups  

 Implement an ICT solution to support agile deployment and ongoing 

communications and engagement to change mindsets about using this 

approach to support talent management. 

 There are plans to use the new workforce planning tool across the 

organisation to allow for more proactive identification of current and future 

resourcing problems and mitigation of risk associated with these.  

Page 35



Outcome 4: We have developed staff to meet predicted future requirements. 

There will be reduced skills gaps, effective use of the staff development 

investment and higher levels of performance  

Progress:  

Learning and Development is a key component of the employment offer. The core 

development offer is available on the training platform DELTA (introduced in 2017), it 

includes a wide range of opportunities, such as classroom-based courses, 

eLearning, videos and quick guides. Engagement with the core learning and 

development offer has increased throughout the length of the people strategy. 

 

There are opportunities for personal development, professional development, and 

qualifications as well as talent management programmes, such as the Future 

Manager programme. The equalities profile for individuals who had accessed the 

development offer in 2020-21 is comparable to KCC’s equalities profile for the same 

period, the offer and access to training is therefore seen to be inclusive to all staff 

groups within KCC.   

Future skill requirements are predicted using evidence from engagement with 

services across the organisation, the strategic direction of the organisation as well as 

our own professional judgement. Developmental programmes are designed and 

delivered to reduce skill gaps and so the learning and development offer is extensive 

and varied.  

 Apprenticeship programmes have been established to support professional 

development both for current roles and future progression. Cohort 

programmes utilising Apprenticeship training are designed and being 

delivered to enable us to take a ‘grow our own’ approach. Examples of this 

include; Social workers, Occupational therapists, Procurement & supply. We 

have also shared £650K with 75 other Kent employers to support 

Apprenticeship training for 171 employees.  

 New Kent Graduate programme launched in 2019 – based on professional 

streams and 15 graduates are currently in post 

 The future manager programme ensures that we have the management 

capability required for future. Across the last 3 years, the future manager 

programme has been accessed by 280 members of staff and continues to 

provide a valuable and effective development pathway for staff. The 

Page 36



programme now also includes an apprenticeship standard (CMI), ensuring 

interventions are joined up to maximise impact.  

 The Kent Academy for Children’s and Adults’ workforce has been launched 

and the portal is now being accessed for staff across the Adults and 

Children’s directorates for all their core and practice development needs.  A 

Kent Academy Strategic Board is now place with members from both 

directorates, Chaired by OD Service Lead to explore the strategic 

requirements around social care development. 

 The digital champions programme has been developed to build digital 

capability to maximise the use of technology. There are currently nearly 300 

digital champions across the organisations who are being digitally upskilled 

and conduits in upskilling colleagues in a relevant and meaningful way. 

Specialist skills are also developed (example, Power BI), based on the 

predicted needs for the future. 

Impact:  

The staff survey has shown that staff are increasingly more positive about the 

Learning and Development offer. 

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

Learning and development 58.5% 62.1% 

I am able to access the right work-related learning and 
development opportunities to support my role 

67.8% 70.4% 

There are opportunities for me to develop my career within 
KCC 

50.1% 54.6% 

 

Whilst staff are more positive about their career development within KCC, this is 

still lower than what we would expect and demonstrates that there is further activity 

needed. One example of this is the new workforce planning tool (currently being 

piloted) which holistically considers development and we would expect that this will 

result in more robust succession planning and strategic interventions to support 

internal career development.  

KCC’s apprenticeship public sector target was achieved in 2019/2010 but not since 

due to school’s underperformance. Over 1,000 KCC staff have accessed training 

under the levy, increasing opportunities for professional development for staff as well 

as reducing reliance on the training budget. The sharing of the levy with other Kent 

employers has also enabled wider Kent employees access to apprenticeship training 

that they would otherwise not have had access to.  

Tangible return on investment has been delivered from the graduate programme 

projects (add example – ask Michelle) and KCC was the winner of ‘the Job crowd’ 

best graduate employer for the public sector. The retention of graduate talent has 

been positive.  

Page 37



The digital champion programme has been successful in, evidenced through the 

digital behaviour of champions themselves (e.g. they use Teams more) and more 

importantly, the impact champions have on their teams digital behaviour.  

 

 

Next Steps:  

 Continue to develop staff to meet predicted future requirements (and 

minimise skills gaps) by effectively using staff development investment, 

including the apprenticeship levy.  

 Review developmental programmes to incorporate apprenticeship 

qualifications where possible. This will allow us to both; enhance the offer for 

staff and maximise the use of the apprenticeship levy.  

 Continue to identify and implement any further opportunities for development 

of staff, wider Kent employees and care leavers, for example, via the 

Kickstart programme.  

 A recent programme of work has focused on workforce planning as a 

mechanism to predicting future workforce requirements. A new workforce 

planning tool has been developed and is currently being piloted across the 

organisation with initial findings being positive. There are plans to use this tool 

across the organisation to allow for better workforce development predictions 

to be made. 

 Economic wellbeing project to support NEETs........ 

Page 38



Outcome 5: We take a pragmatic approach to risk in people management. 

Reduced process, empowered managers, quicker decision making  

Progress:   

KCC managers are empowered to take accountability for people management 

processes and decisions. HR continue to provide FAQ’s, webinars, presentations 

and advice to managers, with an average number of 69 HR change activities at any 

time during 2020/21 and an average of 98 employee relations cases being supported 

at any time during 2020/21.  

 

People management approaches have evolved over time in response to the 

changing context. Highlights include: 

 the Organisation Design toolkit and approach has been developed to 

support and inform change. This includes Decision Making Accountability 

(DMA) levels, and Spans and Layers to ensure that decisions are made at the 

right level, with a view to quicker decision making.   

 the Grievance procedure was replaced by the Resolution procedure, with 

an emphasis on informal resolution of issues, including the use of mediation 

to reduce the need for formal processes 

 a devolved approach to job evaluation, with 135 assessments taking place 

outside of a restructure process between 2018/19 to 2020/21. 

 System and process improvements such as the removing the requirement 

to upload business cases on the Recruitment system, and the enhancement 

of Manager Self-Service to speed up processes 

 building people management capability through management 

development, during 2018/19 to 2020/21 the Kent Manager programme has 

been delivered to and undertaken by 585 managers. A suite of HR Essentials 

modules, the HR liaison role, the Good Conversation tool and through 

engagement opportunities such as T200, Challenger.  

Page 39



 the refresh of KCC Values and Culture Boost sessions to understand the 

future skills required, which include accountability and managing risk. 

 organisationally, a risk managed approach was taken to address inherent 

issues in the way holiday pay is calculated for those on Term Time Only 

contracts   

 supporting the flexible deployment of resources in response to COVID-19 

pandemic to meet emerging business needs 

 enhanced risk assessments e.g. demographic risk assessments, reviewed 

stress risk assessment  

Impact:   

 

There is evidence to suggest managers are taking a more risk-measured approach 

with people management processes appropriate to the circumstances. However, the 

support required by managers with case activity has typically become more complex 

and multi-faceted, which makes it more difficult for managers to be empowered. 

They are aware of the risks and prepared to take a pragmatic approach but take HR 

advice to ensure they are doing the right thing. At Employment Tribunals, 

expectations on KCC as an employer to make reasonable adjustments appear to be 

increasing, which arguably has an impact on how risk averse the organisation 

becomes.   

There was an increase in case activity between 2018/19 to 2020/21 with a dip in 

2020/21, whilst the number of appeals including dismissal appeals reduced. The 

impact of the Covid-19 pandemic plays out in the case data, which could be 

explained by the pause put on hearings during 20/21: 

 There has been a marked increase in Early Conciliation cases, but the 

number being heard at Employment Tribunal has decreased, either having 

been settled or cases dropped.  

 The time taken to complete cases typically increased across all types of cases 

between 18/19 and 19/20, with the exception of cases due to Performance & 

Capability - poor performance, whilst during 20/21 there was a general 

downward trend in the average number of working days to conclude a case.  

 Both the number of settlement agreements and settlement payments made to 

staff have fluctuated. All settlement agreements are risk assessed based on 

whether there is potential for a case at Employment Tribunal. 

There has also been an overall increase in the number of HR change activities 

supported from 2017/18 to 2020/21, with a peak in 2019/20: 

 Process redesign activity has been supported across the organisation. 

Projects such as the service wide Governance & Law Process Review 2019 

had a positive impact by resulting in more efficient and streamlined internal 

and customer processes which in turn inform quicker decision making. 

Page 40



 The target for spans and layers across the organisation is 6 layers made up of 

5 managerial/supervisory layers plus 1 layer of front-line staff, and an average 

span of control of 7fte. Monitoring of the spans and layers shows this has not 

been achieved since 2016/17 and has not been as closely enforced in recent 

months. 

With a devolved approach, it is not surprising that activity has increased as 

managers are being more pragmatic with their approach to risk. We are operating in 

the context of increased litigation, and whilst informal processes may be happening, 

staff do not have anything to lose by pursuing formal complaints.  

Staff survey data between 2018 and 2019 shows an improvement in managers 

keeping staff informed, and staff feeling empowered to do their jobs, which may 

contribute to quicker decision making. 90.7% of staff feel trusted to carry out their job 

effectively, which suggests managers are creating a culture of trust. 

Staff Survey 
 

2018 2019 

My manager keeps me informed 
 

73.5% 76.6% 

I feel empowered by my manager to do my job 65.8% 70.8% 

I am trusted to carry out my job effectively 90.5% 90.7% 

 

Next Steps:   

 Use the 360 evaluations to draw conclusions on the impact of management 

development on people management processes.  

 Roll out of the new Managing in KCC programme to ensure managers are 

equipped to undertake their roles and embed the new KCC values and culture 

into management practice. 

 Consider how we assess the impact of organisation design approaches, 

given that spans and layers are no longer routinely monitored   

 Continue to support an expected rise in case activity, as a result of lasting 

impact of Covid-19 pandemic 

 Review the investigation element of case management to speed up process 

and provide more support to internal investigating managers.  

 Continue with prevention activity, targeted sickness interventions and 

upskilling managers with case management  

 Roll out Workforce Planning tool designed to enable managers to think 

about people issues, role design, and identifying risk factors.  

 Capitalise on the opportunities that agile deployment brings as part of our 

ongoing resourcing strategy to drive a more flexible workforce, to support 

career development and to potentially fill hard to recruit roles. Explore a new 

technological solution to support this. 

Page 41



Outcome 6: Conversations with managers are taking place with a 

demonstrable focus on outcomes, as will be evidenced from staff surveys  

Progress:  

Our approach to managing and supporting performance changed in April 2018, 

with a renewed focus on managing and supporting staff to help them be the best 

they can be by having regular, well-rounded conversations. Since then, 

conversational practice has been a regular feature of communication and 

engagement activity, including the promotion of the good conversation tool and the 

drive for managers to support individual staff needs.  

The “Managing in KCC” programme (previously Kent Manager) has been 

redefined and redesigned aligned with our design principles and new management 

capabilities. The programme emphasises the importance of managing by outcomes 

and empowering staff. The programme is mandatory for new managers; however, 

existing managers have been developed against our new management capabilities 

through a series of facilitated workshops in July and August 2021. In addition to this 

programme, we have delivered “Supporting our managers” workshops to over 250 

managers across KCC, recognising their efforts and providing space to share, 

reflect and learn from their COVID-19 experiences 

Our organisational design principles have been redefined alongside our 

aspirational culture attributes and supporting values and leadership traits. The new 

principles set out what we stand for and what our focus will be going forward. CMT 

blogs on each of the values have set the tone from the top and set clear 

expectations for managers and staff what values look like in delivery. Culture boost 

sessions were held for staff to enable them to help shape these activities. Culture 

audits and action learning sets are taking place in to embed the new values and 

behaviours within directorates. 

Impact:  

The staff survey shows that since the renewed approach to managing and 

supporting performance was introduced there has been a positive change in the way 

conversations with managers are taking place as shown in the below table.  

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

My manager helps me to understand how I contribute to KCC's 
objectives 

63.4% 65.4% 

I feel empowered by my manager to do my job 65.8% 70.8% 

I am trusted to carry out my job effectively 90.5% 90.7% 

 

Additionally, the activity outlined appears to be impacting positively on performance 

as higher ratings in Total Contribution Pay (TCP) have been increasing throughout 

the length of the strategy, albeit without a link to personal performance as an 

outcome of the 2020/21 review.  

Page 42



Gradually and deliberately our culture and identity are being intentionally 

shaped to realise our cultural ambitions through the many different activities across 

the HR/OD function, Senior Leadership Round Tables, Manager and Staff 

development, CMT blogs, Values based recruitment, embedding our culture and 

values across our people policies and procedures and ensuring our Reward and 

Recognition schemes are used to recognise the right behaviours. The impact cannot 

be quantified yet, but this will be built into future activity as the impact of such activity 

is longitudinal.  

Next Steps:  

 Ongoing communication and engagement around the culture and values 

we aspire to and reinforcement of the need for a demonstrable focus on 

outcomes as part of good conversation will continue to be vital and a key 

enabler to KCC’s flexible working objective. We will share stories from staff as 

well as practical examples of our values in actions.  

 Identify and remove organisational barriers to change, continue to embed 

our culture and values in key organisational and people processes and equip 

managers with the capabilities to enable our culture 

 Begin to measure our progress through defining and agreeing a set of 

measures/balance scorecard that are outcomes focused as a monitoring tool.  

 

Page 43



Outcome 7: Managers appreciate and undertake their full people management 

responsibilities 

Progress:  

KNet offers a range of guidance to support managers in appreciating and 

understanding their full management responsibilities. There is a manager's area on 

KNet including a manager's calendar to highlight specific activities that need to be 

conducted as well as a range of toolkits. Managers are increasingly aware of their 

responsibilities, including cascading information through innovative functionality such 

as the newly introduced Staff Communication ‘postcards’ on Teams which highlights 

particularly important information.  

Each year in our staff survey, staff say that they value regular conversations and 

support from their managers, trusting the information, advice and guidance that they 

give over and above any other sources. Maintaining regular and supportive 

conversations is central to managing performance and engaging staff. The good 

conversation tool specifically helps managers to have these high-quality 

conversations with staff and invest time in supporting individual staff needs through 

investing time to find out what is working well and what could be better, remove 

barriers and makes the most of opportunities.  

In addition to the guidance, the management development offer also includes 

development for alumni Kent Managers through “Supporting our managers” 

sessions. These sessions ensure that there is a consistent understanding of 

management responsibilities as well as the expected values and behaviours and 

supports managers to identify areas in which they may need to undertake further 

development. In addition, the HR liaison role ensures that management teams have 

support when they need it as well as being prompted to have regular people 

conversations.  

As well as the core offer, specific interventions have also been put in place to 

support managers when a particular risk is identified. For example, a targeted 

sickness intervention pilot is underway working managers of teams with high levels 

of sickness absence to carry out a wellbeing diagnostic assessment, which seeks to 

identify causes of absence and prevention measures, resulting in an action plan. The 

pilot has commenced with two teams in ASCH, and further work is planned with GET 

and in CY as part of their directorate mental health plan. 

Impact:  

Through the staff survey it is evident that the majority of staff have the opportunity to 

discuss things with their managers as often as they need to and encouragingly the 

number of staff who say this is increasing.  

 

Page 44



Staff Survey 2018 2019 

I have opportunities to discuss things with my manager as 
often as I need to 

78.4% 81.3% 

 

However, there has been anecdotal feedback from staff groups that managers may 

be avoiding conversations/conversations are not consistently taking place with 

certain staff groups, particularly around wellbeing of BME and disabled staff as a 

result of Black Lives Matter and Covid-19.  

The management development offer combined with the availability and promotion of 

management guidance and tools seems to have correlated with improved staff 

performance over the period of this People Strategy. Total Contribution Pay 

awards reflect that ‘Performance Improvement Required’ has decreased, suggesting 

that managers may be having more effective conversations with staff before 

performance becomes a concern.  But PIR was going up before the new/exceptional 

arrangement for 2020/21 

 

Simultaneously, higher Total Contribution Pay ratings have increased suggesting 

that performance generally is increasing. This also correlates with Staff survey 

feedback which shows that staff are increasingly receiving regular feedback about 

their performance at work and that this feedback helps them improve their 

performance.  

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

I receive regular feedback on my performance at work 67.1% 70.3% 

The feedback I receive from my manager helps me to improve 
my performance 

67.5% 71.8% 

 

It is too early to understand the impact on absence levels from the targeted 

Page 45



intervention activity, but conversations will continue with managers to prevent further 

absence, being mindful of issues such as presenteeism in a hybrid working model.  

Next Steps:  

 Continue to use Manager communication such as Manager k-mail and 

calendar as these remain effective.  

 Ensure the manager guidance and toolkits provided for KNet are regularly 

reviewed and any updates provided in a timely way for publication. 

 Management development remains a priority and we will be....  

 Roll out the new workforce planning tool across the organisation to support 

managers to think holistically and systematically about people management 

and their full management responsibilities both at a personal managerial level 

as well as service management teams.  

Page 46



Outcome 8: Managers engage with people as individuals to capitalise on the 

specific strengths, skills and capabilities they bring. Delivering increased 

engagement and improved performance through TCP assessments  

Progress:   

Being an inclusive employer is one of our workforce equality objectives with a 

focus on enabling staff to be themselves at work, including supporting managers in 

the way in which they engage with their staff. An inclusivity model and indicator has 

been developed to increase understanding of what we mean by inclusion and how 

staff experience the organisation. A key element of this model is psychological 

safety, and the role leaders and managers play in creating a work environment 

based on trust.  

We continue to work with and support staff groups to influence our approach and are 

committed to promoting employee voice and organisational listening. This has 

included sessions with staff groups to understand perspectives and to shape our 

engagement approach.  

The annual staff survey has evolved and is now conducted in house and includes the 

whole organisation. It allows us to measure engagement levels through informed 

questions supported by face-to-face engagement sessions, and traction has been 

gained through the inclusion of free-text boxes in the work and wellbeing pulse 

surveys. There has been a slight improvement in response rates from 51% (4130 

respondents) in 2018, to 52% (4400 respondents) in 2019. 

Health and wellbeing has been consistently highlighted in staff communications 

and engagement, with CMT messages regularly reinforcing the importance of 

wellbeing and taking an individual approach to understanding and supporting needs 

through management dialogues and performance management conversations. To 

supplement the good conversation tool, Wellness Action Plans and the Demographic 

Risk Assessment have been introduced in response to emerging issues from Covid-

19. 
  

The good conversation approach has been a key feature of performance 

management at KCC. Managers are encouraged to consider individual 

circumstances in terms of their ability to deliver.  

An accessible development offer has been continually enhanced to address gaps 

in individuals’ skills and capabilities. This has included remote working webinars to 

equip managers to manage a distributed, remote workforce, and the future manager 

programme, the new Kent Manager and inclusive leadership development. 

Impact:   

Creating an inclusive culture where managers have the tools and frameworks to be 

able to effectively manage staff has had a positive impact on levels of engagement.  

Staff Survey 2018 2019 

Page 47



My manager takes an interest in me as a person rather than 
just my work 

74.4% 77.4% 

I think that KCC staff respect individual differences (e.g. 
cultures, working styles, backgrounds, ideas etc.) 

78.6% 80.1% 

I feel valued for the work I do 65.9% 70.3% 

 

Whilst there has generally been a positive impact on performance, the TCP profile 

suggests there is an ongoing issue with managers not recognising individual 

differences in staff, particularly for part time workers who are typically women, for 

black and minority ethnic staff and staff with disabilities where inequalities appear to 

exist in achievement of higher TCP ratings. A higher proportion of PIR ratings were 

awarded to BAME and disabled staff.   

 

  

This is reinforced through the Inclusivity Indicator, which not only shows marked 

differences in the TCP ratings of those staff with a disability or from a black, ethnic 

minority group, but differences in levels of turnover, sickness and engagement. It 

also shows that sickness levels for females are typically higher than for males and 

the gender pay gap has not narrowed. 

Extensive analysis of access to the Learning and Development offer has found 
that the equalities profile for individuals who had accessed either Face2Face or 
eLearning in 2020-21 (and were still in post as at the 31 March 2021) is comparable 
KCC’s equalities profile for the same period and therefore the Learning and 
Development offer and access to training is inclusive to all staff groups within Kent 
County Council. 

Page 48



 

Next Steps:   

 Address the TCP equalities profile to recognise the contribution of all staff, 

regardless of their background or circumstance. Discussions have been had 

at CMT and CEG on ways to address this within directorates. 

 Review the approach to performance management  

 Delivery of action plans to improve race equality and disability inclusion. 

These include the development of an Inclusion passport and increasing the 

diversity both at a senior leadership level, and those accessing talent 

management programmes such as apprenticeships, graduates and the future 

manager programme.  

 Develop a directorate version of the inclusivity indicator to monitor and 

embed inclusion at a local level.  

 Input and support to WRES within Social Care  

 Ongoing communication and engagement to drive a more inclusive 

workplace, to support the education and context, and to embed good 

management practice.  

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

From:  Bryan Sweetland - Cabinet Member for Communications, 
Engagement, People and Partnerships 

 
   Amanda Beer - Corporate Director – People and 

Communications  
 

To:   Personnel Committee  
 

Date:  11th November 2021 
 
Subject:  Employee Relations Casework Activity  
                          
Classification: Unrestricted  

 

Summary: This report updates Personnel Committee on employee relations case 
work activity for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021.   
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
The committee is asked to note the report of employee relations activity including 
senior officer appeals hearings.  
 

 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 Personnel Committee are provided with an update on the numbers of 

discipline, capability, resolution, and Employment Tribunal cases to provide an 
overview of the level of activity and distribution of cases. This report updates 
the Committee on the activity for the year 1 April 2021 – 30 September 2021. 
 

1.2 The case activity reflects the range of Employee Relations (ER) cases our 
KCC Managers are managing. The Managers continue to lead on managing 
performance assisted by a range of development interventions and tools 
available to assist them. The HR Team continues to take the lead in providing 
professional advice and coaching managers to confidently manage the 
increasingly complex employee relations cases. 
 

2.    Case Analysis 
 
2.1 The analysis of activity for the year is set against the challenges of continuing 

to manage cases through the response and recovery phase of the COVID19 
pandemic. The overall case levels at the half year mark have increased by 23 
or 9%. As in previous years, the greatest volume of cases in the year are 
those concerning ill health, and the number of cases being managed formally 
has increased from the previous year indicating managers are addressing and 
robustly managing absence by formalising sickness cases after the informal 
processes have been exhausted. (Appendix 1).    
 

2.2 Disciplinary case activity has remained at broadly similar levels to the previous 
year indicating that Managers are continuing to address issues through the 
appropriate channels and progressing through the formal processes where 
necessary with HR advice and support.  

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

2.3 The resolution case activity during the first half of 2021 has remained at 
similar levels to last year however the number of cases involving bullying and 
harassment has reduced from the previous year indicating the successful 
management of these types of cases through early conversations using 
informal channels and with Managers taking a proactive approach. 
 

2.4 There has been an increase in the case activity concerned with the 
management of performance against the previous year and this reflects the 
proactive approach our managers are taking in addressing issues of 
performance formally where necessary and where informal performance 
management approaches have not been successful.  
 

2.5 The number of Employment Tribunal and Early Conciliation cases where 
claims are lodged against KCC has reduced slightly from 2020 half yearly 
levels and remain relatively low for an organisation of its size. Cases are now 
being progressed through the Employment Tribunals, following a period of 
delay during the early part of the pandemic. There are nine claims currently 
pending and during the first half year three have been settled or withdrawn 
and in one, the Employment Tribunal found in favour of the claimant. Of the 
three Early Conciliation cases, where discussions take place through ACAS, 
discussions are ongoing in two and one request was rejected by KCC and a 
claim has been lodged with the Employment Tribunal. 
 

3. Dismissal appeals heard by senior officers 
 
3.1 Appeals against dismissal (other than staff in probation) are managed through 

HR and members of the Senior Managers Group are expected to sit on the 
appeal panel supported by Invicta Law and HR. Appeal decisions are 
therefore taken by a range of senior officers. 

 
3.2 From 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021 one dismissal appeal was heard and 

one is still pending having been adjourned. As outlined on the table below, the 
appeal heard was not successful. 
 

Directorate No. of 
Appeals 

Case Type Outcomes 

Adult Social Care 
and Health 

1 1 x Disciplinary 
Dismissal  

Appeal not upheld 
 
 

Children, Young 
People & Education 

1 1x Disciplinary 
Dismissal 

Not yet heard 
 

 
TOTAL 

 
2 

  
 

 
4.   Conclusions 
 
The half year ER case activity overall has increased, which may be expected as 
some case activity was paused during the very early stages of the pandemic last 
year. There has been an increase in cases being formally managed through the 
Performance and Capability Procedure and the number of cases pending at 

Page 52



 

 

Employment Tribunal have reduced now that the Employment Tribunals are actively 
progressing cases. 
 
 

Recommendation(s):   
 
Personnel Committee is asked to note the report of employee relations activity 
including senior officer appeals hearings.  
 

 
 
 
 
Report Author:  
 
Paul Royel, Head of HR&OD 
 
Telephone number 03000 416631 
 
Email address paul.royel@kent.gov.uk 

Relevant Director: 
 
Amanda Beer, Corporate Director, 
People and Communications 
Telephone number  03000 415835  
 
 Email address 
Amanda.beer@kent.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

From: Bryan Sweetland – Cabinet Member for Communications, 
Engagement, People and Partnerships 

  
    Amanda Beer – Corporate Director People & Communications  
 
To:   Personnel Committee  

 
Date:  11 November 2021  
 
Subject:  Pay Bargaining  
                          
Classification: Unrestricted covering report - verbal update and discussion will 

be exempt under paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

Summary: This paper introduces this year’s local pay bargaining process.                
 
Recommendation:   
 
The Personnel Committee is asked to note progress and receive an oral update at 
the meeting on 11 November 2021. 

 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 This year represents the 17th year of local pay bargaining undertaken with our 

three recognised trades unions, Unison, Unite and GMB.  
 

1.2 The process started in September 2021, setting the financial and market 
context, which has been significantly affected by the pandemic. This year is 
expected to be particularly challenging given the financial context, higher 
levels of inflation and increases in National Insurance levels from April 2022. 
There are scheduled joint meetings through to January 2022. 
 

1.3 The initial submission from the trades unions will have been shared by the 
time Personnel Committee meets and will be the subject of further exploration 
over the coming weeks. There is a very clear expectation that the focus this 
year will be on the pay and not broader terms and conditions.  
 

1.4 Whilst the final position will be reported to Personnel Committee in January 
2022 an update on this year’s discussions will be presented at the meeting.    

 
2.       Recommendation 
 

Recommendation:   
 
The Personnel Committee is asked to note progress and receive an update at the 
meeting on 11 November 2021. 

 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
 
3.      Contact details 
 
Report Author:  
 
Paul Royel, Head of HR & OD 
03000 416631  
Paul.Royel@kent.gov.uk 
 

Relevant Director:  
 
Amanda Beer, Corporate Director People & Communications 
03000 415835 
Amanda.beer@kent.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 56

mailto:Paul.Royel@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Amanda.beer@kent.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Annual Workforce Profile Report Update
	Workforce Update Report - Final - Appendices

	5 People Strategy 2017 to 2022 Evaluation
	People Strategy Evaluation - Final - Appendix 1

	6 Employee Relations Casework Activity
	8 Pay Bargaining

